
Standards Committee 
Members 

 
 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Tuesday, 5 July 2022.   
 
INSERT SIGNATURE 
 
Kim Wright, Chief Executive 
Date Not Specified 
 
  

Councillor Hilary Moore (Chair) 

Councillor Bill Brown 

Councillor Peter Bernards 

Councillor Brenda Dacres 

Councillor Eva Kestner 

Councillor Rachel Onikosi 

Councillor Rosie Parry 

Councillor James Rathbone 

Councillor Eva Stamirowski 

Councillor Aliya Sheikh 

  

Joy Walton  

Fasil Bhatti  

Gill Butler  

David Roper-Newman  

Cathy Sullivan  

Leslie Thomas  

Public Document Pack



 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Standards Committee 
Agenda 

 
Tuesday, 5 July 2022 
6.00 pm, Civic Suite Lewisham Town Hall Catford SE6 4RU 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact:  Jasmine Kassim (Tel: 020 8314 9365) 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Declaration of interests 

 
1 - 4 

2.   Minutes 
 

5 - 10 

3.   Appointments to Sub-Committees of the Standards Committee 
 

11 

4.   Annual Complaints Report 
 

12 - 59 

5.   Update on Cases of Members' Complaints 
 

60 - 63 

6.   Future Items: The Director of Law, Governance & Elections to provide 
a verbal update 
 

 

 



 

 

Standards Committee 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Date: 5 July 2022 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive  

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 2



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 3



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

Page 4



 

Standards Committee 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that minutes of those parts of meetings of the Standards 
Committee held on 14 March 2022 be confirmed and signed.  
 
 
 
 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive, 
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU  
 
27 June 2022 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider minutes of that part of the meetings of the 
Standards Committee of 14 March 2022  

Minutes 
 

Date: 5 July June 2022 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
Monday, 14 March 2022 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Obajimi Adefiranye, Pauline Morrison and James-J Walsh. 
 
 
MEMBER(S) OF THE COMMITTEE JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY: 
Councillors Patrick Codd, Jim Mallory and Kim Powell. 
 
 
OTHER MEMBER(S) OF THE COMMITTEE JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY: 
Fasil Bhatti and David Roper-Newman. 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE WAS RECEIVED FROM: 
Joy Walton 
 
 
NB. The Councillors listed as joining virtually were not in attendance for the purposes of 
the meeting being quorate, any decision taken, or to satisfy the requirement of s85 Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
 
OFFICER(S) JOINTING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY:  
Director of Law, Governance and Elections as Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
Clerk: Senior Committee Manager (in person) 
 
 
1. Declaration of interests 

 
None were made. 
 

2. Minutes 
 
At this point of consideration, Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye proposed that the 
meeting should be adjourned to deal with an internet connection issue.  The 
proposal was seconded by Councillor Pauline Morrison, and agreed. 
 
The meeting resumed approximately 5 minutes after the adjournment, and the 
Committee 
 
RESOLVED those minutes of meetings of the Standards Committee held on 
5 August 2020 and 26 May 2021 be confirmed and signed as correct records. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 6



 

 
 
 

2 

3. Introduction of Jeremy Chambers, new Director of Law, Governance & 
Elections (Monitoring Officer) - Oral Report 
 
On behalf of the Committee, the Chair, Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye introduced 
and welcomed Jeremy Chambers as the Council’s new Director of Law, 
Governance and Elections at the meeting.  The Director acknowledged the 
recognition made by the Committee, and informed that although he started full-
time as the Monitoring Officer in March 2022, he had been working for the Council 
since 17 November 2021. 
 
In response to a concern, the Committee was advised that although flexibility in 
legislation enabled councils to convene meetings virtually, that did not happen 
across Lewisham’s governance arrangements, leading to the Monitoring Officer 
inheriting a regime where meetings of the Standards Committee did not place for 
the last two years.   
 
The Committee also noted clarification from the Monitoring Officer that the cases 
he was about to report on were deliberately vague in details to prevent Members 
from potential prejudicial or pre-determination situations, considering the timeline 
towards the forthcoming local councils’ pre-election publicity period.   
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

4. Update on ongoing cases of Member Complaints 
 
The Committee received an update report by the Monitoring Officer regarding the 
following cases: 
 
Case A 
The Committee was advised that the Monitoring Officer received a complaint on 
29 June 2021 against a Councillor, alleging Islamophobia.  It was stated that the 
complaint was acknowledged, and the Ethics form sent out requesting further 
information was completed and returned to the Monitoring Officer.   
 
Specific to the case, the Committee Monitoring Officer stated that there were 
suggestions that an exchange took place on social media.  Also, a vote by the 
Councillor complained about, and the explanation provided for voting in a 
particular way were highlighted by the complainant as constituting a breach of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct.   
 
The Committee noted that the Councillor and the complainant had received a copy 
of the final investigation report for comment by the close of business on Friday 18 
March 2022.  It was stated that any comment received would be shared with 
Bevan Brittan LLP, the external firm of solicitors that conducted the investigation.  
The Monitoring Officer stated that thereafter, in accordance with the Council’s 
constitutional procedures, and subject to councils’ pre-election publicity rules 
considering the forthcoming local elections in May 2022, he would convene a Sub-
Committee of the Standards Committee to undertake an initial consideration of the 
allegations.  
 

Page 7



 

 
 
 

3 

Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye advised the Committee that as the Chair of the 
Committee, he had received and forwarded the complaint to the Monitoring 
Officer.  Councillor Adefiranye expressed a disappointment that he received no 
response to requests he made on several occasions for an update on progress. 
 
Case B 
The Committee noted that the Monitoring Officer received a complaint from a 
member of the public on 1 November 2021 against a group of councillors for their 
lack of care in the community.  It was stated that the residents alleged that she 
was also harassed.   
 
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that the complaint was acknowledged the next 
day with a request for further information to help assess the issues complaint 
about.  It was stated that the complainant was also advised to contact the police 
because of the concern she had for her safety.  However, no response had been 
received from the resident to date.  The Monitoring Officer stated that the case 
would be closed within a reasonable period for lack of sufficient information. 
 
Case C 
The Committee noted that a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer on 
2 November 2021 from a resident about poor service from their ward councillors.  
The Monitoring Officer stated that the complaint was acknowledged, and a form 
was sent to the complainant for further information.  However, the form had not 
been returned, and the complaint would be closed within a reasonable period for 
lack of sufficient information. 
 
Case D 
The Committee noted that a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer on 
25 November 2021 from a resident against a councillor for failure to respond to 
issues raised.  The complaint was acknowledged, and an Ethics form was sent for 
further information. 
 
The Committee heard that the resident had completed and returned the ethics 
form.  It was stated that the Monitoring Officer had concluded that the matter was 
not in the public’s interest to warrant an investigation.  Therefore, the complaint 
has been closed, and the resident had been notified.  It was noted that there was 
no right of appeal against the Monitoring Officer’s determination of a complaint. 
 
Case E 
The Committee noted that a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer on 
5 December 2021 from a member of the public, alleging that a councillor had 
shared his/her information with a council officer. 
 
The Monitoring Officer stated that the complaint was rejected on two grounds.  
Frist, it was not in the public interest.  Secondly, the office of the Information 
Commission issued statutory guidance of implied consent that information to the 
Council can be shared with councillors and officers, unless expressly advised not 
to do so. 
 
The latter scenario was considered legitimate by David Roper-Newman, who 
echoed that legislation allows elected representatives to handle issues on behalf 

Page 8



 

 
 
 

4 

of data subjects.  Therefore, councillors in exercising their roles as community 
leaders and ward members representing their constituents are included. 
 
Case F 
The Committee noted that the Monitoring Officer received a complaint on 25 
January 2022 regarding the conduct of Blackheath Ward councillors.  It was stated 
that the complaint was acknowledged, and an Ethics form was sent for further 
information.  However, the form had not been returned, and the complaint would 
be closed within a reasonable period for lack of sufficient information. 
 
Case G 
The Committee noted that the Monitoring Officer received a complaint on 16 
February 2022 from a councillor alleging that another councillor was acting 
unlawfully.  The Monitoring Officer stated that he had considered and rejected the 
complaint, as it was found not to be in the public interest to pursue. 
 
Case H 
The Monitoring Officer advised the Committee that he received a complaint after 
the agenda for the meeting in view was published.  It was confirmed that the 
complaint relating to remarks by a councillor at a ‘live’ recording of a planning 
appeal was already in the public domain and had gained some attention on social 
media.  The Committee understood that the complaint had been acknowledged 
and the Monitoring Officer would be reviewing the details. 
 
The Committee also noted responses from the Monitoring Officer to questions 
raised as follows: 

 That there was no requirement in the Council’s constitution for 
complainants to complete the Ethics form.  However, the process of dealing 
with a complaint will not commence until sufficient information to initiate the 
investigation was received. 

 That once a decision was made by the Monitoring Officer to investigate a 
complaint, the relevant councillor(s) would be notified about the nature of 
the issues.  However, the Monitoring Officer would not automatically inform 
councillors about the identity of the complaints.  It was stated that 
depending on the nature of the complaint, the Monitoring Officer would 
make a judgement as to whether or not, or when to notify councillors about 
the identity of complainants. 

 That in addition to the ‘public interest’ test, there were safeguards in the 
Council’s Constitution for the Monitoring Officer to reject complaints that 
were trivial, vexatious, motivated by political agenda, or out-right 
inappropriate.  Considering the safeguards, the Monitoring Officer would 
always act objectively to weigh each circumstance to avoid detracting 
resources from complaints that the Council should actually be investigating. 

 That in view of Case F, the Monitoring Officer would circulate the wards 
affected regarding the other cases.  It was stated that it would be a breach 
of confidentiality of Members disclose the information without permission in 
contravention of local councils’ pre-election publicity rules. 

 
In his closing remarks, the Councillor Obajimi Adefiranye thanked officers and 
Members for the support he had received from them over the years.  Councillor 

Page 9



 

 
 
 

5 

Adefiranye asked that it should be recorded that he was advised that the reason 
why the Committee did not meet to consider its business in the last two years was 
due to an instruction from a previous Monitoring Officer not to hold Standards 
Committee meetings.  The Chair expressed his disappointment in that regard, 
commenting that it was unacceptable for an Officer of the Council to take such a 
unilateral decision without consulting him as Chair of the Committee.   
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

5. Dates of Future Meetings 
 
Members noted dates of forthcoming meetings of the Standards Committee for 
2022/23 as follows: 

 May 25 2022 (Annual General Meeting) 

 July 12 2022 

 December 8 2022 and 

 March 9 2023 

 
The Monitoring Officer stated that the dates listed after 25 May 2022 would be 
considered for approval at the Annual General Meeting as part of the Council’s 
corporate calendar of meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 6.40pm. 

Page 10



 

Standards Committee 

 

 
1. STANDARDS COMMITTEE SUB-COMMITTEES 
 

RECOMMENDATION that the following persons be appointed to Sub-
Committees of the Standards Committee 
 
Standards Sub-Committee A 
 
Councillor Moore 
Councillor Bernhards 
Councillor Stamirowski 
Councillor Parry 
Councillor Aliya Sheikh 
 
Independent Members: Sullivan, Roper-Newman and Bhatti 
 
Standards Sub-Committee B 
 
Councillor Brown 
Councillor Dacres 
Councillor Rathbone 
Councillor Onikosi 
Councillor Kestner 
 
Independent Members: Joy Walton; Fasil Bhatti; Gill Butler; David 
Roper-Newman; Cathy Sullivan and Leslie Thomas 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider the appointments to Sub Committees. 

Appointments to Sub-Committees   

 
Date: 5 July 2022 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: n/a 

Contributors: Chief Executive (Head of Committee Business) 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



1 
 

 

Standards Committee 

 

 

 

  

 

Report title: Annual Complaints Report 2021-22 

Date: 6 July 2022 

Key decision: No.  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All wards 

Contributors: Director of Resident and Business Services; Corporate 

Complaints, Casework & Contracts Manager; Customer Services Manager – 

Environment; Head of Governance & Complaints Lewisham Homes, Quality 

Assurance & Business Support Manager - Adult Social Care; Complaints & 

Information Manager - Children’s Social Care 

 

 

 

 
Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this report is to set out complaints and casework performance in 
2021/22 as well as the measures being put in place to improve complaint 
handling, performance and service delivery. 

Mayor and Cabinet are asked to note the contents and the recommendations as 
set out in section 2 of this report.  

 

 

 
Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this report is to set out complaints and casework performance in 
2020/21 as well as the improvement measures being put in place to improve 
complaint handling, performance and service delivery. 

The main recommendations are under section 2 on page 3 of this report: 

 

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

This report was reviewed by: 

 The Executive Management Team (EMT) 8 June 2022; 

 The Standards Committee on 5th July 2022 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 

2 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 

This annual report sets out performance information on complaints and 
casework dealt with by Lewisham Council and its housing partners in 2021/22. 
The main report focuses on corporate complaints at all stages as well as 
enquiries to MPs, the Mayor, Councillors, and the Chief Executive and general 
enquiries. The Adult and Children’s Social Care Report is in appendix 8.1. The 
Lewisham Homes annual figures have been included in this report as well as 
notifications – FOIs and SARs. 
 

1.1 The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) report will be 
sent as a separate report in Q3 of this year. 

 
1.2 The Adult Social Care and Children’s Social Care complaints reports are 

attached in Appendix 14.1 and 14.2 respectively. These reports include an 
overview of statutory complaints in Adult Social Care and Children’s Social 
Care. 

 
1.3 The annual report from the Independent Adjudicator can be found at Appendix 

14.3. 
 
1.4 The Freedom of Information, Subject Access Requests and Disclosure 

Requests are attached in Appendix 14.4 
 

1.5 The 2021/22 data provided in this report is based on information recorded on 
the complaints system - iCasework. Data for 2020/21 and previous years has 
been provided for comparison where available. The accuracy of the underlying 
data is dependent on how cases are recorded and categorised on the system 
by officers. During Covid, the Council temporarily introduced a system of 
logging member casework via the Mayor’s Office. This meant that member 
casework was processed via email instead of the iCasework system and that 
casework numbers represented in this report are indicative and not exhaustive.   

1.6 After looking at performance data, and finding a dip in performance, a decision 
was taken to launch an end to end review of how casework is handled by the 
council. This has resulted in a number of changes. The processes around 
Members Casework has been reviewed in partnership with a number of 
Councillors as part of the “Resident Experience Programme” in conjunction with 
the Corporate Complaints, Casework and Contracts Manager and other areas 
within the Council. As a result of this work, a new members portal has been 
developed to enable elected representatives to log casework on behalf of their 
constituents be it a query or a complaint. This will give Councillors, Members, 
MP, Mayor and the Chief Executive greater visibility on the progress of their 
case and who is dealing with the query. Ultimately this will lead to improved 
response times for casework and cases will be directed to and owned by the 
service area rather than Corporate Complaints Team to prevent delays 
 
 

Page 13



 

 

 

3 
 

 Background & Main Issues 

1.7 Since December 2021, performance information and response times has been 
available to Executive Directors, Directors and Heads of Service and therefore 
performance both good and bad is now being highlighted and discussed 
regularly in monthly Department Team meetings. 

 
1.8 In addition to this performance information, from Quarter 4, the Corporate 

Complaints team have met on a monthly basis with several teams that either 
have high volume of complaints and or / poor performance to better understand 
and support their complaints handling.  These meetings have been well 
received and we are beginning to see better ownership and accountability 
around complaints performance. 

 

1.9 The Council recognised that investment was required in iCasework and as such 
have invested £37k this year by renewing the contract and managing the 
contract more closely with the provider, Civica.  This system will enable us to 
continue to log and track information requests / complaints and to carry out 
analysis of this data in helping us to improve our performance. 
 

1.10 The processes around Members Casework were reviewed as part of the 
Resident Experience Programme in conjunction with the Corporate Complaints, 
Casework and Contracts Manager earlier this year. We are pleased that the 
portal - a new, augmented casework section of iCasework - is due to go live on 
Tuesday 27th July with training provided for members the week before.  This will 
enable us to capture all enquiries that come into the Council in one place.  We 
will continue to support members post go live to ensure that the new process is 
embedded as smoothly as possible. 

 
1.11 As discussed in section 4.7 of last year’s complaints report, as of February 

2022, we went back to our pre Covid service level targets of responding to 
complaints in 10 days instead of 20.  The standard response times and 
responsibilities (from Feb 2022) for responding to complaints at each stage are 
shown in Table 1 below.   

 

Table 1 – Standard Response Times & Responsibilities 

Complaint / Casework  
Revised Timescales 

with effect from 
01/02/22 

Responsibility 

Stage 1 Corporate Complaint 
10 working days 
(previously 20 
working days) 

Service Manager 

Stage 2 Corporate Complaint 
20 working days 
(previously 25 
working days) 

Corporate Complaints & 
Casework Team 

Page 14



 

 

 

4 
 

Stage 3 Corporate Complaint 
30 working days 
(previously 35 
working days) 

Independent Adjudicator 

MP / Mayor / Councillor / CEO / 
General Enquiries 

10 working days 
(previously 20 
working days) 

Corporate Complaints and 
Casework Team/Executive 
Directors 

 
1.12 Despite a number of changes adopted within teams to help improve 

performance, responses to complaints and casework have consistently been 
below target although we are seeing incremental improvements across all areas 
as the changes made bed in.  

 

1.13 Some issues have been identified in terms of the quality of some responses to 
complaints and casework. This has been addressed and our independent 
adjudicator has written guidance on how to respond to complaints.  

 
2 Recommendations 

 
2.1 Standards Committee Members are asked to note the contents of this report 

and note that: 
 

2.2 Single service Stage Two Complaints and all Members enquiries will be 
responded to and dealt with by the responsible service directly and not via the 
Corporate Complaints team. Only multifaceted, Stage Two complaints and 
enquiries to be handled by Corporate Complaints team.  This has been 
successfully piloted in the Planning Service. 
 

2.3 A new Members portal for members to log and monitor their enquiries and/or 
complaints from their constituents will be implemented in July 2022  
 

2.4 Complaints are now being discussed bi-monthly at the Corporate Assurance 
Board to focus on areas requiring improvement. The Director of Resident and 
Business Services attends this meeting. 
 

2.5 This year as well as improving our responsiveness in dealing with complaints 
and enquiries, we need to continue to use the learning from complaints to 
address service delivery issues and to help prevent complaints arising in the 
first place.  

3 Policy Context 

Corporate Complaints 

3.1 One of our core values set out in Lewisham Council’s Corporate Strategy is that 
‘we are open, honest and fair in all we do’. As an organisation with a learning 
culture, we welcome customer feedback about its services and staff from 
residents and service users. The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy details 
how we handle the complaints and feedback that we receive. Corporate 
complaints are dealt with under a three stage complaints process. The Local 

Page 15



 

 

 

5 
 

Government & Social Care Ombudsman and Housing Ombudsman Service are 
external regulators with statutory powers to investigate complaints against 
councils. 
 
Adult Social Care Statutory Complaints 

 
3.2 Since 1991, the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990 has 

charged each local authority with maintaining a statutory complaints process for 
adult social care services. The current regulations, The Local Authority Social 
Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009, 
came into force on 1 April 2009. Statutorily, local provision of the regulations is 
the responsibility of each council’s Chief Executive Officer. In Lewisham, that 
responsibility has been delegated to the Director of Operations for Adult Social 
Care.   

 
Children’s Social Care Statutory Complaints 

 
3.3 The Children’s Act 1989 Representation Procedure (England) Regulations 2006 

requires local authorities have a formal complaints handling procedure in place 
for children and young people who wish to make a representation or complaint 
about social care. The regulations set out three stages: Stage One – Local 
Resolution; Stage Two – Independent Investigation, and Stage three – Review 
Panel: 

 

Children’s Act only complaints 

3.4 The Council received a total of 86 cases of complaints in 2021/22, which were 
categorised under the Children’s Act. The Children’s Act complaints procedure 
is a statutory procedure for children and young people to make complaints and 
any other representations about actions and decisions of Children’s Social Care 
services; it is also open to any other person acting on their behalf, as well as to 
people with ‘sufficient interest’ in the child or young person, to make complaints 
in their own right. 

 

3.5  There was an increase of 16 cases on previous year 20/21 when 70 
were received. There is a direct link with the higher number of complaints 
received and an increase in demand for services.  There was a 29% 
increase in the number of referrals into Children’s Social Care during the 
period (3381 in 2020/21 and 4365 in 2021/22) this together with a 
number of vacancies, has resulted in significant pressure on the service 
and the timeliness/quality of our communication which is our most 
reoccurring theme. 

 

CYP Stage 1: Statutory 

complaints 2020/21 2021/22 % change 

Statutory Stage 1 complaints 70 86 18.60% 

 

 

Page 16



 

 

 

6 
 

Top three 2021/22 Children Act Complaints: 

 

MASH / Referral and Assessment                       27 

Family Support and Safeguarding                       24 

Corporate Parenting                                            22 

 
Overall Complaints within Children Young People section. 

 

All CYP stage 1 complaints 2020/21 2021/22 % change 

Statutory Stage 1 Complaints 70 86 18.60% 

Non Statutory Stage 1 Complaint 53 55 3.60% 

Total 123 141 12.70% 

    

 
3.6 Children’s Act complaints are about children’s social care only and are 

prescribed by the Children’s Act regulations.  Non Statutory complaints are 
complaints falling under the Council’s corporate complaints procedure, which 
for CYP includes complaints about educational services – admissions, Special 
Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND). 
 
Top three 2021/22 All stage 1 complaints: 

Integrated Services & SEND                       54 

MASH / Referral and Assessment             27 

Family Support and Safeguarding                      24 

 
4 Council Wide Overall Performance  

 
Table 1– New Stage 1’s & New Enquiries for 2021/22 for Lewisham Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
*All Enquiries – This included General Enquiry’s, MP, Member, Mayor and CEO. 
 

Case type (Lewisham 
council) 

 
 

2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 
2021/22 

% increase / 
decrease from 
previous year 

New Complaints (Stage 1 
only) 

2026 1562 1923 23% 

 All Enquires * 4456 4116 4662 10% 

Total  6482 5678 6585 13% 

Page 17



 

 

 

7 
 

 
 

 
 
 

4.1 Comparison with 2020/21 is not available at directorate level, due to change in 
directorates made in part way through 2021.   See table below which provides 
comparison of stage 1(new) complaints and Enquiries from 2019/20, 2020/21 
and 2021/22. 

 
Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes.  

 
4.2 The total number of new complaints and enquiries received by Lewisham 

Council and Lewisham Homes in 2021/22 was 8,705 cases. 
 
4.3 Of the 2,667 new Stage 1 complaints received in 2021/22, there were 227 

complaints escalated to Stage 2; 109 complaints escalated to Stage 3; and 8 

Page 18



 

 

 

8 
 

(council only) cases referred to the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGSCO). 

 
4.4 The volume of overall complaints & Enquires increased from the previous year 

with an increase of 10% (837) from 7,868 in 20/21 to 8,705 in 21/22.  
 
4.5 New first stage complaints accounted for just over 22% of all casework received 

in 2021/22. 
 
4.6 There were 6,038 new enquiries received in 2021/22. 2,210 (36%) of these 

cases were general enquiries and the remainder were MP / Mayor / Member / 
CEO enquiries.  The nature of general enquiries varies but can include a 
request for a service or advice and information. 

 

Table 2 – Volume of New Stage 1 Corporate Complaints Received by Lewisham Council & 

Lewisham Homes 

 
4.7 Whilst the direction of travel above for the Council shows a slight increase 

overall for Stage 1 complaints when compared to last year, Lewisham Homes 
has seen a significant increase in the number of complaints. This increase has 
been seen across the social housing sector for this period.   
 

 
Table 3 – Volume of New Enquiries by Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes 

 
4.8 The direction of travel shows an increase of enquiries compared to last year. 

 
Table 4 – Volume of Complaints & Enquiries Received (Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes)   

Stage 1 Corporate Complaints Received – Lewisham Council & 
Lewisham Homes 

Organisation 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

% 
increase / 
decrease 

from 
previous 

year Lewisham Council 2236 1926 1987 38% 

Lewisham Homes 399 381 680 78% 

Total  2635 2307 2667 45% 

Enquiries Received – Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes 

Organisation 

 
 

2019/20 
 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 

% increase / 
decrease from 
previous year 

Lewisham Council 4386 4492 4,662 4% 

Lewisham Homes 1021 1069 1,376 29% 

Total  5407 5561 6,038 9% 

Page 19



 

 

 

9 
 

 
 
Summary – Case Volumes 
 

4.9 Overall there is an increase in complaints and enquiries compared to last year.  

5 Root cause of complaints 

 

5.1 See below for top 10 service areas which received the most complaints. The 
services are high volume contact areas for the council, for areas such as waste 
collection, council tax, Housing and Planning.  

Table – 5 – Top Ten Complaints by Service Areas  

Top 10 Service Areas Cases 

1 Waste 479 

2 Revenues 351 

3 Housing needs 283 

4 Green Scene 142 

5 Cleansing 85 

6 Integrated Services & SEND 60 

7 Planning 58 

8 Traffic 58 

9 Private Sector Housing Agency (PSHA) 53 

10 Parking 51 

 
5.2 See below for further information on each of the top 5 Services, which show 

specific areas within the service that customer have made a complaint about.  
 

Table 5.1 – Top 10 Complaints – Waste  

Rank Waste  Case 

1 Request for new/replacement bin 111 

2 Missed Collection 108 

3 General Waste 69 

5,743

6,992
7,777 8,042 7,868

8,705

1,000

3,000

5,000

7,000

9,000

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Volume of Complaints & Enquiries Received
- Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes

Page 20



 

 

 

10 
 

4 Disposal 57 

5 Bin not returned 36 

6 Broken Bin 32 

7 Not classified 32 

8 Bin not delivered 12 

9 Contamination 10 

10 Garden Waste Subscription 3 

 
 
 
 
Table 5.2 – Top 10 Complaints – Revenues  

Rank Revenues Case 

1 Account Query   158 

2 Liability Dispute   32 

3 Payments   21 

4 Notices Issued (Rem/Final)   19 

5 Covid-19 14 

6 Reliefs/Exemptions   13 

7 Account Management   13 

8 Discount/exemption   10 

9 Refunds   9 

10 Summons   9 

 
 
Table 5.3 – Top 10 Complaints – Housing Needs  

Page 21



 

 

 

11 
 

Rank Housing Needs Case 

1 Temporary Accommodation 92 

2 Lewisham Find Your Home 29 

3 Homeless/ Part 7 application 25 

4 Housing Options Centre  service (frontline) 25 

5 Suitability of accommodation  18 

6 Temporary Accommodation (Nightly Paid) 15 

7 Housing register /Part 6 application 15 

8 Housing register waiting list 14 

9 SHIP service (frontline) 11 

10 Temporary accommodation (hostel) 10 

 
Table 5.4 – Top 10 Complaints – Green Scene 

Rank Green Scene Case 

1 Tree works 47 

2 Grounds Maintenance 29 

3 Festivals 25 

4 Park Services 19 

5 Not classified 8 

6 Rats and Mice 4 

7 Other Pest Control 4 

8 Security 2 

9 Play Equipment 1 

10 Charge 1 

 

Table 5.5 – Top 10 Complaints – Cleansing 

Rank Cleansing Case 

1 Fly tipping 34 

2 Service Request 10 

3 Vehicle removals 8 

4 Lumber Collection 8 

5 Schedule 4 

6 Leaves 4 

7 Booking 3 

8 Fixed Penalty Notice 3 

9 Collection 3 

10 Removal 3 

 

Page 22



 

 

 

12 
 

5.3 The top two issues for complaints relate to Revenues, and Environmental 
Services.   Environmental services has the second highest number of 
complaints which all relate to missed collections, disposal services, bin 
replacements and bins not being returned.  The division reengineered internal 
processes to help improve sign off and approvals, and coordination of 
combined responses. A regular management liaison forum was established with 
the Corporate Complaints Team to ensure resources were best aligned and 
utilised. This has also led to a complete reworking on the hierarchy that 
supports iCasework to correctly reflect the new divisional structure and to clarify 
discrepancies in former categorisations and allocations. 

 
5.4 It is worth noting that the service collects 330,000 bins a week and 277 

complaints equates to the service failing on 0.00014% of occasions.  
 
5.5 Revenues issue 130,000 Council tax notices to domestic properties. With 158 

complaints for 21/22 this equates to less than 0.0001% residents being 
dissatisfied with the service.  

 
 

            Table 6 – Top 5 Complaint Issues & Outcomes 

Outcome of Top 5 Complaint Issues in 2021/22 

Lewisham Council 

Complaints Issue 
No. of 
Cases 

Resolved 
upon 

Receipt 
Not Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Upheld 

Account Query 
(Revenues) 

158 20 119 12 7 

Request New/ 
Replacement Bin 
(Enviro. Services) 

111 5 17 77 12 

Missed Collection 
(Enviro. Services) 

109 3 22 64 20 

Temporary 
Accommodation 
(Housing Needs) 

92 22 52 10 8 

Disposal (Enviro. 
Services) 

57 10 11 26 10 

Lewisham Homes 

Complaints Issue 
No. of 
Cases 

Plumbing 124 

Operational Issues 48 

Damp 63 

Appointments 66 

Carpentry repair 23 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

13 
 

 

    Table 6.1 – Additional information supplied by Lewisham Homes.  

Outcome 
Q1  

2021/22 
Q2 

2021/22 
Q3 

2021/22 
Q4 

2021/22 

Upheld 42.8% 41.9% 38.3% 48.4% 

Not upheld 16.2% 19.2% 22.2% 19.6% 

Partly upheld 41.0% 37.4% 38.9% 31.6% 

 

6. Performance (Cases Due & Timelines) 

 
6.1 Although cases across all stages of complaints have reduced, improvements 

need to be made in responding to complaints on time. Improved reporting will 
help to highlight this to services. 

 

Please see below for summary of Lewisham council performance in Table 7, 
please see table 8 for more granular information including Lewisham homes.   
 
          Table 7 – Lewisham council overall complaints and Enquiries performance.  

LEWISHAM Timeliness of Corporate Complaints & All Enquiries 

Organisation 
 

Year / 
Variance 

Stage 1 & 2  
Complaints 

All Enquiries 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Cases 
Due 

% On Time 

Lewisham 
Council 

2019/20 2083 82% 4456 87% 

2020/21 1612 77% 4116 86% 

2021/22 1976 73% 4662 78% 

 

 
            

Table 8 - Timeliness of Stage 1 & Stage 2 Corporate Complaints and General Enquiries –
Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes, exc. Statutory complaints for children’s and adult’s social 
care 

Page 24



 

 

 

14 
 

Timeliness of Corporate Complaints and General Enquiries – Council Directorates & 
Lewisham Homes 

Organisation 
 

Year / 
Variance 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

Stage 2 Complaints General Enquiries 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Lewisham 
Council 

2019/20 2026 83% 57 51% 2578 98% 

2020/21 1562 79% 50 28% 2422 98% 

2021/22 1923 73% 53 72% 1995 93% 

Variance 361  6% 3 44% 427  5% 

Lewisham 
Homes 

2019/20 387 92% 65 97% 297 83% 

2020/21 331 91% 90 92% 274 84% 

2021/22 680 76% 174 69% 215 78% 

Variance 349 15% 84 23% 2 16% 

Total 

2019/20 2413 84% 122 75% 2875 96% 

2020/21 1893 81% 140 69% 2696 97% 

2021/22 2603 74% 227 70% 2210 96% 

Variance 710 7% 87 1% 204 1% 

 

6.2 The number of Stage 1 complaints saw an increase of 710 from 2020/21, more 
in keeping with pre-Covid levels of 19/20. Performance appears to have 
decreased with the increased volumes with a 7% decrease on previous year. 
This increase in cases is also reflected in stage 2 volumes which increased by 
87 on previous year, though performance was up 1%. General enquiries 
performance remain above 90% overall, but Lewisham homes performance 
dropped by 16%.  

 
Table 9 – Timeliness of MP, Mayor, Members and CEO Enquiries – Lewisham Council & 
Lewisham Homes 

 

Improvement Actions - Performance 

Timeliness of Enquiries – Council Directorates & Lewisham Homes 

Organisation 
  

Year / 
Variance 

MP Mayor Members CEO 

Case
s 

Due 

% On 
Time 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Cases 
Due 

% On 
Time 

Lewisham Council 

2019/20 1183 69% 270 73% 361 79% 64 76% 

2020/21 1130 68% 266 70% 227 73% 71 62% 

2021/22 1412 68% 527 63% 617 68% 111 63% 

Variance 282 0% 261 7% 390  5% 40 1% 

Lewisham Homes 

2019/20 455 95% 36 72% 224 93% 3 67% 

2021/22 481 95% 58 81% 197 97% 1 0% 

2021/22 494 80% 77 8% 191 80% 0 0% 

Variance 13 15% 19 73% 6 17% 1  

Total 

2019/20 1638 76% 306 73% 585 84% 67 76% 

2020/21 1611 76% 324 72% 424 84% 72 62% 

2021/22 1906 71% 604 56% 808 70% 111 63% 

Variance 295 5% 280 16% 384 14% 39 1% 

Page 25



 

 

 

15 
 

6.3 Performance has remained the same compared to last year for MP enquiries, a 
reduction of 1% performance for Mayoral enquiries, however a 14% reduction in 
performance for Chief Exec enquiries compared to last year with an increase in 
the number of enquiries in 20/21. This reduction in performance with similar 
caseloads to the previous year is due to a reduction in staffing resource. Better 
reporting measures have been put in place to monitor performance monthly and 
therefore any reduction in performance can be picked up and addressed in a 
timely fashion. 

7 Complaint outcomes 

 
7.1 The high level breakdown of complaints by decision in 2021/22 for Lewisham 

Council and Lewisham Homes is as follows: 

 
Table 10 – Complaints Outcomes in 2021/22 – (Lewisham Council & Lewisham Homes) 

Complaint Outcomes – Lewisham Council* 

Complaint 
Stage 

Resolved at 
initial contact 

Withdrawn Not Upheld Partly Upheld Upheld Total 

Stage 1 297 (12) 0 817(71) 441 (45) 257 (30) 1,812 (158) 

Stage 2  0 1 35 (4) 11 (2) 6 (1) 53 (7) 

Stage 3 0 0 32 (1) 11(0) 8 (0) 51(1) 

Total 297 1 884 (76) 463 (47) 271 (31) 1,916 (166) 

% of Total 16% 0.1% 46.1% 24.2% 14.1% - 

CONTAINS CYP & ASC STATUTORY CASES AT ALL STAGES (in brackets)*. 

 
 

7.2 38% (39% 20/21) of all complaint cases handled in Lewisham were upheld or 
partly upheld.  The breakdown by complaint stage was as follows: 

 Stage 1 –39% (40% 20/21) partly upheld/upheld; 

 Stage 2 – 32% (26% 20/21) partly upheld/upheld; 

 Stage 3 – 37% (57% 20/21) partly upheld/upheld. 

 
Improvement Actions 

 
7.3 It has been agreed that greater responsibility will be given to service areas to 

action complaints and highlight any issues/pending/overdue responses as soon 
as they arise. This has been put in place from July 2021 with improved monthly 
reporting now being sent directly to Executive Directors and is included in the 
recommendations and Improvement Actions. 
 

7.4 An enterprise dashboard will be rolled out to a nominated person within each 
Directorate which gives access to all overdue and pending cases by Directorate 
to enable oversight of performance and individual cases which is detailed in the 
third bullet point in the recommendations. 

 

Page 26



 

 

 

16 
 

8. Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Letter 2021/22 

 
8.1 At the time of writing, the ombudsman’s letter is not yet available but we will 

publish it on our website, alongside our response as soon as we’re in receipt of 
it. 

9 Independent Adjudicator 

 

9.1 The Independent Adjudicator (IA) deals with Stage 3 complaints on behalf of 
the Council, Regenter and Lewisham Homes. 

 
9.2 The IA report for the Council is attached at below at Appendix 8.3. The key 

headlines are: 
 

 109 cases were received and 49% of these cases were regarding housing 
providers (Lewisham Homes and Regenter B3);  

 The IA determined 56 cases about the Council. The top themes for the 
Council were planning and housing. The top themes for housing providers 
were repairs and ASB;  

 Compensation was awarded in 50 cases totalling £24,732.80 (this included 
one case where stage 3 was Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) to avoid 
court action);  

 The average compensation awarded was £494 in 2021/22, which was a 6% 
reduction from the previous year. The median payment was £250 and the 
most frequent £50. 

 Just over half of the complaints (57 out of 109, 53%) were upheld or partly 
upheld at stage 3.   

 
  

Independent Adjudicator Case Outcomes and Average Compensation Payment 

Year  Cases  

Determined  

Cases 
Upheld / 
Partly 
Upheld  

Cases Awarded 
Compensation  

Total 
Compensation 
Awarded  

Average 
Compensation 
Awarded  

2020/21 35 15 7 £3,700 £529 

2021/22 109 57 50 £24,732 £494 

 
9.3 The large increase in compensation paid this year reflects the increased 

number of stage 3 complaints overall and is as a result of a combination of 
factors: 

 

1. Adjudications in 2020-21 were affected by Covid-19. There were 
significantly fewer. There was only one award of compensation in the 
first 6 months of the year. 

Page 27



 

 

 

17 
 

2. The IA recorded complaint outcomes differently in 2021-22, to match 
the iCasework record. 

3. Previous years have fluctuated considerably – 2019/20 was double 
2018/19, and then 2020/21 was a quarter of the previous year. 
Therefore, 53% as a proportion of total is about the same as 2019/20 
(24 upheld out of 48). 

4. In some circumstances, the IA can act as alternative dispute resolution 
(ADR) which avoids court action. These cases are rare but the 
compensation is invariably high, at £5,600 in the case considered this 
year. 

5. The IA uses LGSCO guidance on remedies to arrive at compensation 
figures. There were cases this year which required significant payment 
to comply with that guidance, and even then, LGSCO recommended an 
additional payment in 2 cases. 

10 Complaints and enquiries by ward  

 

10.1 The distribution of complaints and enquiries received by ward per 1,000 
residents in 2021/22 is shown below. 

The below information is based on available postcode data. In 2021/22 8,006 
complaints and enquiries were recorded (compared with 7,540 in 2020/21) and 
ward information was available for 6,597 of these (compared with 5,206 in 
2020/21). 1,245 records did not have a postcode recorded and 19 records had 
incomplete postcodes. The majority of the remaining 145 complaints and 
enquiries were made by residents outside of London. The majority of records 
with no postcode information recorded were enquiries (1,016 of 5,502 enquiries, 
18% of enquiries) compared to 9% of complaints (229 of 2,504 complaints). 

 

10.2 In 2021/22, the highest number of complaints received per 1,000 residents were 
from residents in Evelyn (9.9 complaints per 1,000). In 2020/21, the highest 
number of complaints per 1,000 were from residents in Blackheath (7.6 
complaints per 1,000 in 2020/21). The lowest number of complaints per 1,000 
residents were from residents in Whitefoot (4.1 complaints per 1,000) and this 
was also true in 2020/21 (with 4.1 complaints per 1,000 residents in both 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Complaints and enquiries per 1,000 by ward 2021/22

Complaints Enquiries Total

Page 28



 

 

 

18 
 

Whitefoot and Rushey Green wards). In 2021/22, there were an average of 
average 6.9 complaints per 1,000 compared to 5.4 complaints in 2020/21; part 
of the reason for this increase is due to improved postcode recording meaning 
that ward information is available for more complaints. 

10.3 The highest number of enquiries received per 1,000 residents were from 
residents in Brockley (45.3 enquiries per 1,000 in 2021/22, compared with 29.1 
enquiries per 1,000 in 2020/21) and Ladywell (39.8 enquiries per 1,000 in 
2021/22, compared with 30.4 enquiries per 1,000 in 2020/21). The lowest 
number of enquiries per 1,000 residents was in Downham (5.9 enquiries per 
1,000 in 2021/22) and this was also true the previous year (3.9 enquiries per 
1,000 in 2020/21). The average number of enquiries per 1,000 residents in 
each ward was 14.5 in 2021/22 (compared with 11.6 in 2020/21). 

 

 
1.4 Of the 160 complaints made by residents of Evelyn in 2021/22, Lewisham 

Homes Responsive Repairs was the most complained about service (68 
complaints), followed by Refuse & Recycling (16 complaints) and Council Tax 
(16 complaints). In the ward with the least complaints per 1,000 residents, 
Whitefoot, the most commonly complained about service was Refuse & 
Recycling (21 complaints in 2021/22), followed by Council Tax (11 complaints). 

 

 
 
 
 

9.9
8.8 8.4 8.3 7.9 7.9 7.8 7.5 6.9 6.8 6.7 6.4

5.6 5.4 5.3 5.1 4.9
4.1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Complaints per 1,000 by ward 2021/22

45.3
39.8

17.3 15.6 14.3 13.5 13.1 12.7 12.4 12.2 10.9 10.7 8.9 8.1 6.8 6.7 6.5 5.9

0

10

20

30

40

50

Enquiries per 1,000 by ward 2021/22

Page 29



 

 

 

19 
 

 
 
10.5 In Brockley, the ward with the most enquiries, 80.4% of enquiries related to 

Regenter B3 (588 enquiries in 2021/22). The second most common service to 
be the subject of an enquiry from a resident was the Housing Options Centre, 
with 27 enquires or 3.7% of the total enquiries from residents in Brockley. In 
Ladywell, the ward with the second most enquiries, the majority related to 
Regenter B3 (81.8% and 525 enquiries in 2021/22) followed by the Housing 
Options Centre (5.5% and 35 enquiries in 2021/22). 

 
10.6 Finally, residents in Downham made the fewest enquiries in 2021/22 (5.9 per 

1,000) and the largest proportion of these related to the Housing Options 
Centre (28.4% and 27 enquiries), followed by Anti-Social Behaviour (6.3% and 
6 enquiries) and Trees (6.3% and 6 enquiries). 

11. Equalities Analysis  

  

11.1    The Council has the ability to collect equalities monitoring information on the 
iCasework system. This information is not mandatory but it can help the Council 
to review the complaints process and to ensure that it remains accessible and 
to everyone.   

 

11.2    The equalities data presented below is based on 10,056 contact records.  In 
most of these contact records the equalities information was not 
disclosed.  Therefore the equalities breakdown provided in the tables below 
gives us an indication of the diverse characteristics of complainants or service 
users in 2020/21. However, we cannot assume that this is an equalized profile 
of all complainants and service users during this period of time. 

 

11.3    Almost 54% of contacts did not provide gender information.  Of those who did 
respond, there were nearly twice as many female persons compared to male 
persons.  This may be disproportionately higher because of the way case 
contacts are recorded on the system.   

 

Table 1 – Equalities Data – Gender 

Total for Gender is 10,056 for 01/04/2021 – 31/03/2022 (does not include Lewisham Homes) 

45.3
39.8

17.3 15.6 14.3 13.5 13.1 12.7 12.4 12.2 10.9 10.7 8.9 8.1 6.8 6.7 6.5 5.9

0

10

20

30

40

50

Enquiries per 1,000 by ward 2021/22

Page 30



 

 

 

20 
 

Equality Category Equality Characteristics 
As % of Total 

Contacts 
01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022 

Gender 

Did not disclose 54%  57% 

Female 31%  28% 

Male 14%  14% 

Prefer not to say 1%  1% 

Transgender 0%  0% 

Total 100% 100% 

  

11.4    97% of contacts did not disclose whether they had a disability or not.  The 
remaining 3% of contacts disclosed details of the type of disability or impairment 
affecting them. 

 

Table 2 – Equalities Data – Disability 

Total for Disabilities is 10,056 for 01/04/2021 – 31/03/2022 (does not include Lewisham Homes) 

Equality Category Equality Characteristics 
As % of Total 

Contacts 
01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022 

Disability 

Did not disclose or No Disability 97% 

 

 

97% 

Disability / Any Other Disability or 
Impairment 3% 

 

 

3% 

Physical Impairment 0% 0% 

Mobility Issues 0% 0% 

Mental Health Condition 0% 0% 

Social or Communication 
Impairment 0% 0% 

Long Standing Illness 0% 0% 

Total 100% 100% 

  

11.5   Although 78% of contacts did not disclose their sexual orientation, of the 
remaining 22% of contact, 1,477 of the respondents preferred not to say (13%) 
and almost 955 disclosed a heterosexual orientation (8%). 

 

Page 31



 

 

 

21 
 

Table 3 – Equalities Data – Sexual Orientation 

Total for Sexual Orientation is 10,056 for 01/04/2021 – 31/03/2022 (does not include Lewisham 
Homes) 

Equality Category Equality Characteristics 
As % of Total 

Contacts 
01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022 

Sexual Orientation 

Did not Disclose 78% 70% 

Prefer not to say 13% 19% 

Heterosexual 8% 10% 

Gay / Lesbian 1% 1% 

Bisexual 0% 0% 

Total 100% 100% 

  

11.6   On ethnicity 87% of those contacting us did not provide ethnicity details, of the 
remaining 13%, circa 1,300 just over half were from the Bangladeshi community 
(54%).  This may be disproportionately higher because of the way case 
contacts are recorded on the system and has also been previously noted that 
as this was the first choice on the drop down menu to select your ethnicity, this 
could explain the high number being recorded from the Bangladeshi 
community.   

 

Table 4 - Equalities Data – Ethnicity  

Total for Ethnicity is 10,056 for 01/04/2021 – 31/03/2022 (does not include Lewisham Homes) 

Equality Category Equality Characteristics 
As % of Total 

Contacts 
01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022 

Ethnicity 

Did not disclose 87% 79% 

Bangladeshi 7% 7% 

Prefer not to say 1% 7% 

White Other 1% 2% 

Caribbean 1% 2% 

African 0% 1% 

Black or Black British Other 0% 1% 

Other 0% 1% 

White and Black Caribbean 0% 0% 

Any other mixed background 0% 0% 

Indian 0% 0% 

Any other groups 0% 0% 

Page 32



 

 

 

22 
 

Equality Category Equality Characteristics 
As % of Total 

Contacts 
01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022 

Asian or Asian British Other 0% 0% 

White and Black African 0% 0% 

Chinese 0% 0% 

Turkish 0% 0% 

Traveller or Roma 0% 0% 

Pakistani 0% 0% 

White and Asian 0% 0% 

Eastern European 0% 0% 

Total    

  

11.7    88% of contacts did not provide their age data.  Of the remaining 12%, more 
than half of the contacts were from people aged 25 – 54 years (60%).  

 

Table 5 – Equalities Data – Age Band  

Total for Age Group is 10,056 for 01/04/2021 – 31/03/2022 (does not include Lewisham Homes 

Equality Category Equality Characteristics 
As % of Total 

Contacts 
01/04/2021 to 

31/03/2022 

Age Band 

Did not Disclose 88% 80% 

0 – 14 years old <1% <1% 

15 – 24 years old <1% <1% 

25 – 54 years old 7% 13% 

55 – 64 years old 2% 3% 

65+ years old 2% 3% 

Total 100% 100% 

 

11.8  Equalities implications 

Equalities data for 2021/22 is provided in Section 7 of this report.  The 
iCasework system enables the Council to collect equalities monitoring 
information and it is used to help ensure the complaints process remains 
accessible and that no particular parts of the community suffer inequity in 
service delivery. 

12 Financial Implications 

 

Page 33



 

 

 

23 
 

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The Council 
has no specific budgets for compensation payments so the costs are absorbed 
by the relevant service as awarded 

13 Legal Implications 

 
13.1 There are no specific legal implications directly arising from this report aside 

from noting that it is recommended good practice from the Local Government’s 
Ombudsman’s Office to make full and specific reference to handling complaints 
within a management agreement entered into under section 27 of the Housing 
Act 1985. 

 
13.2 Given the subject and nature of this report, it is relevant here to note that the 

Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 
equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
13.3 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard 
 to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act; 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not; 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

13.4 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to 
it is a   matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and 
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations. 

 
13.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled 
“Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of 
Practice”. The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it 
relates to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly 
with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public 
authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally 
required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have 
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so 
without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and 
the technical guidance can be found at:  
 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-
codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/  The Equality and Human Rights 
Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides  

 The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 

 Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making 

Page 34

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/


 

 

 

24 
 

 Engagement and the equality duty 

 Equality objectives and the equality duty 

 Equality information and the equality duty 

13.6 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements 
including the general equality duty, the specific duties and whom they apply to. 
It covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that 
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four 
documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good 
practice. Further information/resources are available at:  

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-
equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

  

Term Definition 

IA Independent Adjudicator 

LGSCO Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 

HO Housing Ombudsman 

 
 

Appendices 

14.1 Adult Social Care Annual Complaints Report (2021/22)   

14.2 Children’ Social Care Annual Complaints Report (2021/22)   

14.3 Independent Adjudicator Annual Report (2021/22)  

14.4 Lewisham Homes Annual Report (2021/22) 

 

Report author and contact 

 

 Lew McKenzie, Complaints, Casework & Contracts Manager, 
lew.mckenzie@lewisham.gov.uk 

Comments for and on behalf of the Executive Director for Corporate Resources,  
           Peter Allery, Group Finance Manager, Peter.Allery@lewisham.gov.uk 

 Comments for and on behalf of the Director of Law, Governance and HR,  
Jeremy Chamber, Principal Lawyer, Jeremy.Chambers@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

Page 35

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/
mailto:lew.mckenzie@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.Allery@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:Jeremy.Chambers@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



 
1 

 
Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 

 
 

Annual report 2021/22 

Adult social care: 
Performance of the statutory 

complaints procedure used by 

the Adult Social Care division 

 

 

 
 
Mark Watson Gray 
Quality Assurance & Business Support Manager 
June 2022 

Page 37



 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

2 

Contents         Page 

 
          
 

1 Purpose of the report      3 

2 Policy context         3 

3 The Local Government & Social care 

Ombudsman        3 

4 Analysis of complaints 2020/21    5 

5 Learning from complaints     7 

6 Our priorities & proposed areas for   8 

Improvement         

   

Page 38



 
3 

 
Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 

1 Purpose of the report 
 

This report provides an overview of the operation and effectiveness of the statutory complaints 
procedure for adult social care, as followed by the Adult Social Care division of the London Borough of 
Lewisham’s Community Services directorate, between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022. Information is 
provided on the complaints that were made, the lessons learnt from those complaints and how the 
Division performed in response.  
 
The production of this report fulfils a statutory requirement and complements performance reports 
and trend analysis presented to the Division’s management team.  
 

2 Policy context  
 

Since 1991, the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990 has charged each local 
authority with maintaining a statutory complaints process for adult social care services. The current 
regulations, The Local Authority Social Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) 
Regulations 2009, came into force on 1 April 2009.  
 
Statutorily, local provision of the regulations is the responsibility of each council’s Chief Executive 
Officer. In Lewisham, that responsibility has been delegated to the Director of Operations for Adult 
Social Care.   
 
The focus of the regulations is on early resolution rather than process, with an emphasis on learning 
from complaints. Local responsibility for administration and ensuring that lessons learnt from 
complaints are recorded and fed back to the Division’s service providers, is delegated to the Quality 
Assurance and Business Support Manager for Adult Social Care, working in partnership with Principle 
Social Work and Advanced Practitioner colleagues.  
 

3 The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman  
 

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) provides an external, independent 
service that oversees complaints about a range of local authority services, including social services. 
The Ombudsman is concerned with maladministration by local authorities and social care providers 
leading to injustice.  
 
The LGSCO also has the power to investigate complaints from adults who pay for their own care and 
who are in receipt of services from Care Quality Commission registered providers of social care.    
 
The Ombudsman normally requires complaints to have been considered locally, using the most 
appropriate complaints procedure, before accepting a complaint for his own investigation.  

Page 39



 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

4 

Since the introduction of the current regulations on 1 April 2009, the Council has informed every 
complainant of their right to escalate concerns to the LGSCO at any time during the progress of their 
complaint. 
 
At the time of writing this report, the Ombudsman had not yet produced his annual report of the 
complaints he received about local authority administration.  
 

4 Analysis of complaints 2021/22 
 

The Council received 89 complaints about adult social care during the reporting period. The tables 
below show that number in comparison to previous reporting periods, and the number of complaints 
received per quarter by comparison to those received during the previous reporting period. 
 
 

2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 

89 79 87 78 69 76 70 90 
 

 
 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 

16 8 29 19 23 20 21 32 

 
The number of complaints received increased, which was expected following the easing of lockdown 
measures both locally and nationally. Although as is routinely the case, quarter one was the period 
with fewest complaints recorded.  
 
A significant number of people were impacted by strict policies put in place by the Council’s Health 
Partner’s that were designed to safeguard local hospital capacity. These policies were stood down 
during the reporting period and we anticipated a rise in the number of complaints to follow. We’re 
encouraged, therefore, that the increase in complaints received by the Council has been 
comparatively small.  
 
4.1 Complaints received 
 

The Council’s Adult Social Care division is divided into nine service areas outlined overleaf. Financial 
Services support with financial assessments and income and payments is provided by the Council’s 
Housing, Environment & Regeneration directorate, although complaints about these functions are 
covered by the statutory regulations and so are included as part of this report. 
  

Page 40



 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

5 

The nine services areas are:  
 
o A dedicated Adults with Learning Disabilities Social Work team; 

 
o In partnership with the South London & Maudsley NHS foundation trust, a dedicated Community 

Mental Health team; 
 
o The Gateway is the ‘front door’ and single point of access to social care and community health 

services. It includes the Social Care Advice & Information team, is linked to the Community 
Nursing Team, and supports a Duty Social Work response;  

 
o The provision of Social Work, Occupational Therapy and Support Planning across four Integrated 

Neighbourhoods; 
 
o Internal Provider Services that help people to stay safe and well at home through the use of 

Enablement Services and Telecare; and a Shared Lives Scheme and Day Opportunities Service that 
help adults with learning difficulties to have better life experiences living as part of their local 
communities. 

 
o A Joint Commissioning service resourced by the Council and NHS Lewisham’s Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG) to maintain the contracts for the provision of homecare support and 
brokerage of short & long term residential & nursing placements;  and the management of 
support funded by NHS Continuing Healthcare;  

 
o A Joint Health & Social Care service funded by the Council and Lewisham & Greenwich NHS Trust 

focussed on the avoidance of admission to hospital, and the safe and sustainable discharge of 
patients back into the community; 

 
o A Safeguarding Quality Assurance service providing strategic support of the Council’s 

safeguarding responsibilities, including the provision of a Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub, a 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) service, and an out of borough Placement Review team.  
 

o An Arranging Care team that is responsible for sourcing and administrating people’s care, 
including Direct Payments.  

 
The table overleaf shows the number of complaints received during the reporting period by service, 
and the length of time taken (in working days) to provide a response.  
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

6 

Service menu (level 3) 
0 - 10 

working 
days 

11 - 25 
working 

days 

26-60 
working 

days 

61+ working 
days 

Total 

Arranging care 3 2 3 1 9 

AWLD Social work 2 1 4 3 10 

Community Mental Health 1    1 

Financial Services 3 5 4 1 13 

Gateway 2 3 1 1 7 

Integrated neighbourhoods 4 12 4 6 26 

Internal provider services 

 
2 1 1 4 

Joint Commissioning  2 
 

1 
 

3 

Joint health & social care  1 5 6 1 13 

Safeguarding, quality assurance 2 1 
  

3 

Total 20 31 24 14 89 

 
4.2 Performance  
 
The Council’s performance measure is to consider and respond to complaints about adult social care 
within 25 working days. There is provision in the statutory regulations to extend that time-period up 
to 60 working days, with the customer’s consent, for complaints that are of a more complex nature. 
The Council responded to more than half (57%) of the complaints it received without needing to 
extend the initial deadline of 25 working days.   
   
The regulations also allow for work to be done and actions to be taken in order to resolve a person’s 
concerns ‘on the spot’ without making them go through a process unnecessarily, particularly where 
satisfactory local resolution can be achieved quickly and easily. The Council resolved 13% of the 
complaints it received in this way.  
 
In 14 cases (16%) the deadline for response wasn’t formally extended and the Council responded 
outside the 60 day timescale. In the previous reporting period this figure was 39% largely due to a 
technical issue with the Council’s workflow system for casework.  
 
However, compared to the 2019/20 reporting period this still reflects an 8% reduction and the Quality 
Assurance team is therefore encouraged to continue its work with services to maintain this 
improvement.    

Page 42

http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report
http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report
http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report
http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report
http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report
http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report
http://icasework:8080/off/servlet/ep.report


 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

7 

 
4.3 Category analysis 
 
The electronic work-flow system the Council uses to help administrate the correspondence it receives 
supports a ‘root cause analysis’ of complaints which helps officers to record multiple issues for 
investigation. Analysis of the complaints received shows that:    
 
- 25% of complaints received were about a perceived failure in the Council’s delivery of services. 

More than half of these complaints were upheld, partly upheld or resolved on the spot;  
 

- 19% of complaints received related to inadequate services provided by a third party 
commissioned service. Of those complaints half were upheld or partly upheld, or resolved on the 
spot with action taken;   

 
- 16% of complaints received recorded were from people who were unhappy about our decision 

making. More than half of these complaints were not upheld or rejected. Only one complaint was 
fully upheld;    

 
- 15% of complaints received were about financial services, either income, payments or financial 

assessments. Half of these complaints were upheld or partly upheld and half not upheld or 
rejected.   

 
- 12% of complaints reported a service, advice or information that was not to the quality or 

standard expected. More than half of complaints in this area were either upheld, partly upheld or 
resolved on the spot. 

 
-  8% of complaints were about delays. Half of these complaints were upheld, partly upheld or 

resolved on the spot.  
 

- Seven complaints were received about staff conduct. Of those only 1 was upheld and another was 
resolved on the spot.   

 

5 Learning from complaints 
 
The Service Development and Improvement team supports people to quickly and satisfactorily resolve 
concerns and complaints. One of the key ways we achieve that is by helping people to focus on those 
things they would like to see improved as a result of their complaint and what outcomes they are 
seeking.  
 

Page 43



 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

8 

The following key learning points were identified during the reporting period that are linked to the 
complaint trends identified as part of this report’s analysis.   
 
5.1 Failure of service and unhappiness with decision making 
 
The work of the Adult Social Care Improvement Group referenced in our analysis from the previous 
reporting period, has become part of ‘Empowering Lewisham’. This exciting programme of re-design 
work, being carried out with partners, is designed to improve outcomes for service users whilst 
addressing our budgetary demands and service pressures. 
 
There are 5 strands or work streams across the adult social care division focusing on co-designing and 
delivering changes: decision making, enablement, learning disability moving on & progression, change 
and culture and digital delivery. 
 
5.2 Complaints about third party providers.  
 
As part of the Multi Agency Quality Assurance and Improvement Group (MAQAIG), the Quality 
Assurance team has been asked to work with the Joint Commissioner for Community Support & Care 
on a review and re-design of the professional Quality Alert system. The aim is to produce a system 
that allows professionals and providers to interact more efficiently in regard to concerns about the 
quality of work being delivered on behalf of the Council.  
  
The intelligence gathered from these reports will be scrutinised by MAQAIG as part of its Quality 
Assurance Framework.  
 
5.3 Financial services 
  
A great deal of work was done to implement a new finance system that allowed the Council to move 
away from its retrospective invoicing system for care services. The new system allow us to manage 
services in real time so that people receive invoices that are both accurate and timely, and based on 
services received. Issues have arisen along the way and these have largely been resolved on a case by 
case basis. One issue is outstanding which cannot be resolved locally and that currently sits with the 
manufacturer of the system for resolution.  

 

6 Our priorities and proposed areas for improvement 
 
The Service Development and improvement team will continue to make available a high quality, 
effective representations service for the Council’s customers to use, and will support it’s adult social 
care colleagues to capture and use the learning opportunities available from the representations it 
receives.  

Page 44



 
 

 
 
 

Annual report of the statutory complaints procedure for adult social care 2021/22 
 

 
 

 

 

 

9 

 
The Team has identified the following priorities and areas for improvement.  
 

1 Provide a continuous review of publically available information about the Council’s adult social 
care service ensuring its appropriateness, accuracy and availability.  
 

2 Go beyond the work completed last year with Service Managers on improving responses to 
complaints, taking it to Operational Managers and their Senior Social Workers.  

 
3 Support the work of Empowering Lewisham by providing all work streams with data and 

intelligence, and playing an active role in helping to shape the work of the culture & change, 
and digital delivery work streams; and 
 

4 In conjunction with that support, continue to work with the Principle Social Worker and their 
Advanced Practitioners to design an affective ‘feedback loop’ enabling easy access to learning 
from complaints and complaint trends, so that they can be used more readily. The aim being 
to transform Lewisham’s adult social care division into a dynamic learning organisation.   

 

Page 45



 

1 
 

 

 

Children and Young People Directorate 

Annual report on compliments, complaints and enquiries 

2021-2022 

1.      Executive Summary  

1.1  This report provides information on complaints and enquiries handled by the Children and Young 

People Directorate (CYP) between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 and includes the annual report 

required by statutory guidance, in ‘Getting the Best from Complaints’ (Social Care Complaints and 

Representations for Children, Young People and others)*.   

1.2  The report includes information on complaints falling within the Council’s corporate complaints 

procedure which were eligible for consideration by CYP, for the same period.  

1.3  Enquiries from MPs, Councillors, the Mayor and general enquiries are also included, for the same 

period. 

1.4  The report provides information on all stages of the complaints procedures, as well as complaints to 

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO). 

 

2  Purpose of Report  

To provide: 

2.1  Numbers of complaints and representations received by CYP; 

2.2. Information about compliance with timescales; 

2.3. Key themes of complaints; 

2.4. Outcomes of complaints; 

2.5. Insights for learning and service improvements; 

2.6. Information about monitoring and quality assurance. 

2.7. Details about independent advocacy services. 

 

3  Stage 1 complaints and enquiries 

3.1. Response times:  

 Statutory complaints: 10 working days, with option to extend to 20 working days for complex 

complaints 

 Corporate complaints: 10 working days 

 MP/Mayor/Councillor enquiries: 10 working days. 

 

3.2.  Table 1.   Total of new cases received over past three years  

2019/2020  2020/2021  2021-2022 
 

Page 46



 

2 
 

325 286 289 

 

 

3.3 Table 2.   Breakdown of new cases received 2021/2022 

 

3.4. Table 3.   Classifications of new cases 

 

 

3.5. Table 4.   Stage 1 Complaints and enquiries with % responded on time 

Period Stage 1 
Children 
Act Stage 
1 

Compliment 
General 
enquiry 

Mayor 
enquiry 

Councillor 
enquiry 

MP 
enquiry 

Chief 
Executive 
enquiry 

Q1 38% 
(5/13) 

27% (9/33) 100% (1/1) 67% (2/3) 33% (1/3) 0% (0/2) 
41% 
(7/17) 

N/A 

Q2 67% 
(14/21) 

26% (7/27) 100% (1/1) 33% (1/3) 
100% 
(2/2) 

100% (2/2) 
50% 
(7/14) 

N/A 

Q3 38% 
(5/13) 

50% (7/14) 100% (2/2) 50% (1/2) 33% (1/3) 40% (2/5) 
39% 
(7/18) 

0% (0/3) 

Q4 38% 
(6/16) 

30% (6/20) 100% (1/1) 50% (4/8) 88% (7/8) 0% (0/1) 
39% 
(9/23) 

0% (0/2) 

 

 

Period Stage 
1 

Children 
Act Stage 1 

General 
enquiry 

Mayor 
enquiry 

Member 
enquiry 

MP 
enquiry 

Compliment Chief 
Executive 
enquiry 

Total 

Q1  

 

16 34 2 1 2 14 1 0 70 

Q2 23 28 4 2 4 18 1 1 81 

Q3  9 13 5 3 3 21 2 2 58 

Q4 20 23 5 9 1 19 1 2 79 

Total 68 97 16 15 10 72 5 5 289 

Page 47



 

3 
 

 

 

3.6. Table 5.  Cases responded to within timescale – by Division 

 
Stage 

1 

Children 

Act 

Stage 1 

Compliment 
General 

enquiry 

Mayor 

enquiry 

Councillor 

enquiry 

MP 

enquiry 

Chief 

Executive 

enquiry 

Children’s 

Social Care 
100% 
(1/1) 

28% 
(24/85) 

100% (4/4) 
50% 
(2/4) 

33% 
(2/6) 

33% (1/3) 
48% 
(12/25) 

0% (0/2) 

Education 

Services 
46% 
(27/59) 

50% (4/8) 100% (1/1) 
63% 
(5/8) 

90% 
(9/10) 

50% (3/6) 
39% 
(16/41) 

0% (0/3) 

Commissioning 

and Early Help 
67% 
(2/3) 

100% 
(1/1) 

N/A 
25% 
(1/4) 

N/A 0% (0/1) 
33% 
(2/6) 

N/A 

 

3.7.   Table 6 Outcome of Stage 1 complaints 

Outcome Stage 1 Children Act Stage 
1 

Total % 

Not upheld 
 

21 44 65 41% 

Partly upheld 
 

20 30 
50 33% 

Upheld 
 

21 17 
38 25.5% 

Resolved on 
receipt 

1 0 
1 0.5% 

Total 
 

63 (40%) 93 (60%) 154 (100%) 100% 

 

 

3.8. Recurring themes of upheld and partially upheld Stage 1 complaints 

Outcomes of upheld and partially upheld complaints reflect a range of issues, the top six being: 

 Communication (e.g. not keeping people informed/updated about developments, plans, meetings, 

conferences) 

 Staff conduct (e.g. inappropriate comments and behaviour from allocated workers, perception of bias 

towards particular member(s) of family) 

 Service delays – Educational Health Care Plans (e.g. delays in delivering services set out in plan, 

procedures/statutory timescales not being met) 

 Customer Service - (e.g. lack of help for families, children and young people, for example to move 

into independent accommodation, during times of crisis, delay in allocating social worker/support 

worker) 

 Service performance (e.g. disagreement with decisions, assessments; case closure) 

 Financial: late or missed payments for foster carers, dispute over overpayment 

3.9. These themes are similar to previous two years 

4. Stage 2 complaints 

4.1. Response times: 

Page 48



 

4 
 

 Statutory complaints: 25 working days, with option to extend to 65 working days 

 Corporate complaints: – 20 working days 

 
4.2. Table 7. Stage 2 requests received 
 
 

 Requests 
received 

Accepted for 
investigation 

Withdrawn Rejected Resolved by  
ADR 

2021-22 33 18 3 9 3 

Children Act 21 9 3 8 1 

Corporate 12 9 0 1 2 

2020-21 29 12 0 9 8 

Children Act 20 5 - 9 6 

Corporate 9 7 - 0 2 

2019-20 25 10 4 7 4 

Children Act 18 5 3 6 4 

Corporate 7 5 1 1 0 

 
 

4.3.  As can be seen from the above table, requests for Stage 2 complaints (of both types) has been 

increasing over the past three years.   

4.4. In 2021-22, for corporate complaints, all but one related to SEN team. For Children Act complaints, 

the highest number of requests related to R&A and FSS (eight for each service). 

4.5.  It remains the case that the majority of complaints are successfully resolved at Stage 1.  A total of 

165 complaints were received during the year; 20% were escalated by complainant, 8.5% were 
accepted for investigation. See Table 7. 

4.6. However of those accepted for investigation 57% were upheld or partly upheld. 
 
4.6.  Escalation reasons 
 
4.7. The three main reasons for people asking for Stage 2 are as follows: 
 
  i) Complaints about failure to deliver policy and/or procedure in a timely and effective way.  The 

majority of these related to EHCP issues; they also included a complaint about approach to care 

planning for a placement move, and one where the complainant felt procedure had not been 

followed when assessing her as a homeless young person. 

 ii)  Assessments: disagreements with accuracy of reports and assessments by social workers. 

 iii)  Attitude/conduct of allocated worker/manager: perceived bias of social work team against father, 

racist attitudes, conduct of staff relating to an absence from school issue.  

 
4.8. Table 8. Outcomes of Stage 2 complaints 

Outcome Corporate 
Children Act 
 

Total 

Not upheld 1 5 6 

Partly upheld 4 1 5 

Upheld 3 0 3 

Page 49



 

5 
 

Total 8 5 14 

 

 

 

 

4.9. Actions arising from upheld and partly upheld Stage 2 complaints:   

1 Apologies for delays, lack of communication, lack of action in EHCP procedures leading 
to failure to meet statutory timescales* 

2 Offers to meet and discuss way forward for families; commitment to prioritising 
necessary action(s)* 

3 2 x £300 payments for complainant and son (for delay in holding Annual Review) 

4 Evidence of DBS clearance and copy of service specification with transport provider 
provided to complainant  

5 Apology for failing to discuss outcome of CFA with complainant; other outcomes to be 
discussed further with Head of Service, if complainant wishes. 

        * applies to multiple complaints 

 
 
5. Stage 3 complaints 
 
5.1.  Response times: 
 

 Corporate complaints – 30 working days. The Independent Adjudicator (IA) deals with Stage 3 
complaints on behalf of the Council.  

 Statutory complaints (review panel) – 30 working days to convene and hold the Review Panel, 5 
working days for the Review Panel to issues its findings and 15 working days for the Executive 
Director to respond to the findings. 

 
 
5.2. Table 9.  Stage 3 requests received. 

 

 Requests 

received 

Accepted  Withdrawn Rejected 

2021-22 9 7 0 2 

Children Act 5 3  2 

Corporate 4 4 0 0 

2020-21 7 6   

Children Act 2 1 0 1 

Corporate 5 5 0 0 

2019-20 11 6   

Children Act 6 3 2 1 

Corporate 5 3 2 0 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

6 
 

 

  

Page 51



 

7 
 

 

5.3. Table 10.  Details of Stage 3 complaints completed during the year 

Case 
Type 

Service Details Outcome 
 

Remedy 

Corporate Integrated 
Services 
and SEND 

Failure to arrange transition 
to secondary school; failure 
to provide alternative 
provision 
 

Partly 
upheld 

Apology for failing in duty to 
provide alternative provision for 
period of nine weeks; £900 
payment for loss and £100 for 
avoidable stress 

Corporate Integrated 
Services 
and SEND 

Delay in responding to 
request for EHCNA 

Partly 
upheld 

Outcome the same as for 
Stages 1&2 (apology for delay 
in actioning the request); IA 
concluded there was nothing 
further to add. 

Corporate Integrated 
Services 
and SEND 

Delay in issuing EHCP and 
subsequent delivery of the 
plan caused loss of education 
for son and distress for family 

Partly 
upheld 

Apology for delay and poor 
administrative practice; 
payment of £1,000 for this 
fault; £400 payment for 
avoidable stress (£250 for 
complainant, £150 for son) 

Children 
Act 

FSS Lack of information and 
communication from social 
work team about son in care 

Not 
upheld 

None as a result of original 
complaint; £100 payment 
offered for delay in starting 
Stage 2 

Children 
Act 

Corporate 
Parenting 

Failure to arrange contact 
sessions with daughter, to 
comply with court order. 
 

Not 
upheld 

None 

Five complaints were completed during the year. 

 

6. Local  Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) complaints 

6.1. Table 11. Numbers of complaints received in 2021-22 (with initial decision) 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.2. Following a sharp dip in the numbers of LGSCO complaints received in 2020-21 (6), the number 

received during 2021-22 was back to similar numbers in earlier years. 

 

Case type 
 

Numbers 
received 

Service Decision 

Children Act 4 Corporate parenting 1 case out of time; 1 case the 
complainant is not authorised to 
complain;  1 case outside jurisdiction; 
1 case to be investigated 

 2 Referral and Assessment To be investigated 

 3 Family Support and 
Safeguarding 

1 case a premature complaint; 1 out 
of time; the other to be investigated 

 4 Children with Disabilities 2 premature complaints; 2 to be 
investigated 

 1 Access, Inclusion and 
Participation 

Out of time 

Corporate 4 SEN team 1 premature complaint; 1 case NFA 
as Council has already resolved this; 
2 to be investigated 

Total 18   

Page 52



 

8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

6.3. Table 12. LGSCO complaints completed during 2021-2022. 

Case 
type 
 

Service Details Decision Remedy 

Children 
Act 

CWD Failure to fully assess needs of 
family; lack of support and 
services for son and family; 
unprofessional conduct by 
social worker 

Fault causing injustice: 
references to complainant 
holding racist views without 
evidence, delay in setting up 
direct payment, failure to 
send copy of CFA 
assessment within 
reasonable time  

£550 to recognise 
failures; detailed letter of 
apology for the identified 
failures 

Children 
Act 

R&A Failure to take children into 
care, resulting in them being 
subjected to neglect and 
emotional suffering from their 
parents. 

Fault in not carrying out 
comprehensive assessment 
in 2013; fault in not 
progressing discussions 
about support options with 
each sibling 

Letter of apology and 
payment of £1400 
(between the siblings) 

Corporate SEND Delays in EHCP process left 
son without education 

 

Fault causing injustice in 
failure to provide education 
May-June 2020 and delay in 
issuing amended EHCP in 
2020;  

Council had already 
accepted these faults 
and offered remedy.  O 
recommended 
additional £250 to 
recognise distress and 
uncertainty while no 
education in place 

 
Children 
Act 

Corporate 
Parenting 

Failure to safeguard 
complainant as an LCA and 
lack of support as a care 
leaver.  

Fault causing injustice: failure 
to safeguard complainant, 
lack of robust follow-up to 
complaint investigation and 
inadequate remedy offered 
as outcome 

Payment of £7,500 to 
recognise failings and 
for avoidable distress; 
provide complainant 
with outcome of LADO 
enquiries. 

Children 
Act 

Corporate 
Parenting 

Did not receive guidance and 
support needed at the time of 
child’s birth; child was 
subsequently removed from 
complainant and placed for 
adoption. Council refused to 
investigate complaint. 

No fault in decision not to 
investigate the complaint.  
Outside jurisdiction as 
complainant had opportunity 
to raise these issues during 
care proceedings 
 

 

 

 

7. Monitoring and Quality Assurance 

 

7.1. Weekly trackers are circulated throughout CYP to assist with meeting Stage 1 timescales.  

7.2. Reminders to staff completing responses are sent 3 days before response is due.   

7.3. Reminder emails sent on behalf of Executive Director are sent for all overdue cases, on a weekly 

basis. 

7.4. Responses are rigorously quality checked before being sent out. 

Page 53



 

9 
 

7.5. Quarterly reports are prepared to inform the quality assurance cycle, and are presented to DMT for 

discussion, reflection and further action.  

7.6. The Monitoring and Quality Assurance process is currently being reviewed to develop robust, 

customer focussed, and effective monitoring and quality assurance processes which will inform 

services improvement plans. 

 
 
8. Independent Advocacy 
 
8.1. Advocacy services for young people have been delivered by National Youth Advocacy Service 

(NYAS) since 1st January 2020.  

 

8.2. The contract requires NYAS to deliver a minimum of 1,000 advocacy hours per year, with an option 

for the Council to spot-purchase up to 500 additional hours on top of this, as needed.  
 

8.3. The Advocacy Service works with children and young people in these eligible groups: 

o Children Looked After who want or need to be supported to attend formal meetings, such as CLA 

Reviews, in order to get their wishes and feelings heard  

o Children Looked After and Care Leavers who have a concern about their care that they don’t feel 

has been sufficiently addressed by the Council, and so may wish to raise a complaint  

o Children and young people that are subject to Child Protection Plans where the child or social 

worker feels the support of an advocate would be beneficial at conferences. 

o Supporting young people at Family Group Conferences. 

 

8.4. Referrals for the advocacy service can either be a self-referrals, from family, carers or a referral from 

a young person’s social worker, personal advisor, participation manager, independent reviewing 

officer or CP conference chair. 

 

8.5. The service provides time-limited support, information and representation from independent 

advocates. This will support Children Looked After (CLA), care leavers and children subject to Child 

Protection Plans when decisions are made about their lives, or when they wish to raise a concern 

about a service they have received. 

 

  

Page 54



Independent Adjudicator Annual 
Review 
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 
The Independent Adjudicator (IA) is the final stage of the corporate complaints procedure for 
Lewisham Council, Lewisham Homes, and Regenter/RB3/Pinnacle. This report covers 
Lewisham Council stage 3s only. 
 
Stage 3 complaints decided 1 April 2021 – 31 March 2022  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Most Children and Young People complaints, and some Community Services complaints, fall 
within statutory complaints processes. I only see those complaints which fall within the 
corporate complaints procedure. 
 

2. I note that the iCasework S3 total is 60, with a similar spread across directorates. An 
iCasework upgrade mid-year means the figures do not map exactly onto the current 
directorates so I have not been able to trace the discrepancy. It is possible that some 
Ombudsman complaints were escalated through S3 on iCasework without actually crossing 
my desk – I know I only handled 56. 
 

3. The total of 56 is an increase of about 10% on the last two years (51 and 50). But in numeric 
terms I would class this as a normal fluctuation. It is still a tiny proportion of the 
approximately 4,000 complaints the Council decided this year. 

 
4. Of the 13 non-statutory complaints the Ombudsman (LGSCO) decided about the Council 

this year, 7 had been reviewed at stage 3.  
 

 6 of the complaints which reached LGSCO had not had a stage 3 review 

 LGSCO made additional recommendations in 2 of these cases (in one of 
which, the Council had failed to take the IA’s advice) 

Page 55



 Where there had been a stage 3 review, LGSCO made the same decision but 
with additional recommendations in 2 cases, and took no further action in 5 
cases. 

5. If LGSCO decide to investigate a complaint, there can be a time-lag of over a year between 
the stage 3 decision and the LGSCO decision. There are also cases which may be 
registered against a housing provider, because they reference outstanding housing repairs, 
but subsequently go to LGSCO (rather than the Housing Ombudsman) because the 
complaint also covers housing allocations (I will cover both issues and signpost to both 
ombudsman at S3). This makes it hard to map what happens at S3, against the LGSCO 
decisions for a particular year. 
 

6. During the year I also: 
 

 provided ad-hoc advice to colleagues about complaints 

 wrote an advice sheet about good complaint handling 

 dip sampled stage 1 and 2 complaints to review quality 

 decided 46 housing complaints about Lewisham Homes 

 decided 5 housing complaints about Regenter B3 (Pinnacle Housing). 
 
Timescales 
 

7. The agreed timescale for stage 3 complaints is 30 working days. This was extended to 35 for 
part of the year, because of Covid-19. The quickest were turned around the same day; the 
longest (a complex complaint involving environmental health, building control, and HMO 
licensing) took 86 days. The mean time taken was 28 days; median and mode were both 30. 
My caseload has fluctuated considerably over the year – at one point I had 21 cases on the 
go, approximately 3 times the optimum. 
 
Stage 3 outcomes 
 

Directorate 
Cases 

decided 

Outcome 

Not 

upheld 

Part 

upheld 

Upheld 

Housing, Environment & Regeneration 29 15 10 4 

Corporate Resources 11 10 1 0 

Community Services 10 7 0 3 

Children and Young People 6 3 3 0 

Total 56 35 14 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
8. Cases which span 2 teams can distort the complaint statistics if the teams are in different 

directorates. This is because when first registering a complaint, corporate complaints have to 
make a decision about which directorate is the main subject of the complaint. There is no 
way round this; no statistics are perfect. Just bear in mind that the numbers are not a precise 
reflection of what people are actually complaining about. 

 
9. Most complaints (35 out of 56, 63%) were not upheld at stage 3. But there may still be 

learning to be had from such complaints.  
 
Learning from complaints 
 
Application of complaints procedure 
 

10. I saw some excellent stage 1 and 2 responses where there was little I could add. However, I 
also saw some cases where a complaint had floundered within the complaints procedure, for 
example: 
 

 Complaint not acknowledged 

 Complaint not recorded on iCasework, or iCasework record-keeping incomplete 

 Multiple stage 1s (or treated repeatedly as a “general enquiry”) 

 Gatekeeping at stage 1 to avoid a stage 2, or at stage 2 to avoid a stage 3 

 Failure to update the complainant if the complaint response was delayed 

 Failure to clearly identify to the complaint what stage of the procedure the complaint 
was at 

 Correct escalation information not included in complaint response 

 Delay in carrying out agreed action to resolve the complaint. 
 

11. These issues tend to occur when staff are inexperienced in complaint-handling (usually in 
services which do not get lots of complaints). I know there have been recent pushes to 
improve here, but it will take a while for such improvements to show up in my own caseload. 
 

12. What I have described as gatekeeping could also sometimes be described as attempted 
resolution. Resolving a complaint at the earliest stage is of course a key principle of effective 
complaint-handling. But it is not always possible to do this – sometimes, an investigation into 
what happened, to make sure it cannot easily happen again, is part of the resolution. 
 

13. I also think there are grounds to treat most escalated complaints which have already had an 
enquiry (whether Member, Mayor, or MP) as a stage 2 complaint (or even a stage 3, if the 
enquiry response was of equivalent detail to a stage 2 response). I think this because: 
 

 A customer who has pursued a matter via a representative is disadvantaged when 
they subsequently register a complaint. The complaint responses are likely to be 
much the same as the enquiry response was, and it will take the customer longer to 
get to a final outcome.  
 

 LGSCO’s legal requirement is only that the Council has had an opportunity to 
respond to the complaint. It may count a member, Mayor or MP enquiry as such an 
opportunity – which is one of the ways a complaint can reach LGSCO investigation, 
without first completing the complaints procedure with an internal independent 
review. 

 
Communication with residents 
 

Page 57



14. I saw a few cases where a small improvement in communications could make a big 
difference. 
 

 Clearer use of specific terminology 

 Clearer advice about services 

 Prompt responses to straightforward questions 

 Timely information to residents about new facilities or local works 

 Update out-of-date terms and conditions 

 Update standard letters and paragraphs. 
 

15. Standard letters and paragraphs are particularly important, because officers rely on them 
when they are broadly self-supporting in administrative tasks. It would be helpful to adopt the 
practice of reviewing the wording of standard letters annually, across the whole of the 
Council – perhaps highlighting a particular week in which to do this.  
 
Joint working 
 

16. I had several cases this year which spanned more than one team – for example 
 

 Building control and HMO licensing 

 Crime, Enforcement & Regulation (CER), and Planning 

 Housing options service and Lewisham Homes 

 CER and Lewisham Homes 

 CER and Events 

 Out of hours and Green Scene 

 Adult social care and CER 

 Planning and Parking 

 Housing options service and Benefits 
 

17. Sometimes the issues can be separated, and effectively each service involved can provide 
an individual complaint response, registered either as 2 separate complaints, or as a single 
complaint with one team leading on the response. But often the complaint is about the failure 
of 2 teams to work together. My recommendations this year have included developing 
protocols to ensure better joint working between teams.  
 

18. When a failure to work together becomes a complaint, stage 1 can be a waste of everyone’s 
time, as each team gets defensive about what officers did, with no clear resolution to the 
complaint. There may be merit in amending the corporate complaints procedure to make 
clearer that such cases should go straight to stage 2. 

 
Conclusion 
 

19. My thanks to all those officers who have provided information for my investigations, and 
given their time to discuss complaints with me. Where my findings and recommendations 
have been challenged, there were good reasons for this; where my findings and 
recommendations have been accepted, I appreciate the willingness to acknowledge fault 
and put matters right.  
   
 
Molly Lofas 
Independent Adjudicator 

 

Page 58



Freedom of Information, Subject Access Requests and Disclosure Requests 

 

Freedom of Information, Subject Access Requests & Disclosures 2021/22 

Case Type Cases Received  Completed in 
Time 

% Completed in Time 

Freedom of Information (FIO) 1506 701 47% 

Subject Access Requests (SAR) 309 166 54% 

Disclosure Requests 191 87 46% 

Total Requests 2006 954 48% 

 

Page 59



 

Standards Committee 

 

 
1. Summary 

 
This report provides the Committee with an update on the cases of Member 
complaints in June 2022. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
The Committee is asked to note the contents of this report. 

 
3. Status of Cases as of June 2022 

 
3.1 Case A 

On 29 June 2021, the Monitoring Officer received a letter from the Chair of the 
Standards Committee. The resident had written to the Chair regarding a 
councillor’s remarks on social media. The Monitoring Officer acknowledged the 
complaint and asked for a completed Ethics form.  
 
On 5 August 2021, the resident emailed a completed ethics form to the 
Monitoring Officer alleging that the councillor defended anti-Semitism and 
Islamophobia hate speech. The then Monitoring Officer wrote to the councillor 
to get their preliminary comments and decided that an Independent Person 
needs to be consulted and advised the resident of this on 14 September 2021. 
After consulting with the Independent Person the then Monitoring Officer 
decided that this complaint required a formal investigation. 

 

Update on Cases of Members’ Complaints  

 

Date: 5 July 2022 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: n/a 

Contributors: Chief Executive (Head of Committee Business) 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to note update on cases of Members’ complaints 

Page 60

Agenda Item 5



The Monitoring Officer contacted Bevan Brittan LLP and appointed them in 
November 2021 to carry out an investigation. The current Monitoring Officer 
joined us the same month. 
 
Bevan Brittan LLP has provided a final investigation report determining that no 
breach took place. 
 
The Monitoring Officer will be bring a report on this matter to a future meeting of 
the sub-committee of the Standards Committee. 

 
3.2 Case B 

On 1 November 2021, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer 
against a group of councillors for their lack of care in the community in relation 
to the resident’s allegation that she is being harassed and threatened by a 
neighbour. The resident’s complaint was acknowledged on 2 November 2021 
and assigned to the Deputy Monitoring Officer (DMO). The DMO wrote to the 
resident asking for more information and offered to speak on the phone. The 
DMO also urged the resident to contact the police over the concerns for her 
safety. 
 
No response was received and this matter is closed. 
 

3.3 Case C 
On 2 November 2021, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer 
alleging poor service from their ward councillors but no further details were 
provided. The resident’s email was acknowledged and the resident was asked 
to fill out an ethics complaint form in order to provide more details to allow the 
Monitoring Officer to consider the complaint. 
 
No response was received and this matter is closed. 
 

3.4 Case D 
On 25 November 2021, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer 
regarding a councillor’s failure to respond to or resolve the issues raised by the 
resident. This resident has a SPOC (Single Point of Contact) so all contact with 
this resident has to go through the Corporate Complaints Team. The resident’s 
email was acknowledged and a completed ethics complaint form was asked for.  
 
The resident sent a completed ethics complaint form on 4 February 2022 and 
the complaint was considered based on the details provided by the resident. 
 
The Monitoring Officer decided that the investigation of this complaint was not 
in the public interest and that the complaint wasn’t serious enough to warrant 
an investigation. Therefore, this complaint was closed. 
 

3.5 Case E 
On 5 December 2021, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer 
regarding a councillor’s conduct. The resident’s email was acknowledged and 
the resident was asked to fill out an ethics complaint form in order to provide 
more details to allow the Monitoring Officer to consider the complaint. 
 
The resident sent a completed ethics complaint form on 13 February 2022. The 
resident alleged that the councillor did not have her permission to share 

Page 61



information relating to her with council officers. The complaint was considered 
based on the details provided by the resident. 
 
The Monitoring Officer decided that the investigation of this complaint was not 
in the public interest and also noted that guidance issued by the Office of the 
Information Commissioner is clear that there is implied consent to the sharing 
of data that is reasonably necessary to pursue the matter raised. Therefore, 
this complaint was closed. 
 

3.6 Case F 
On 25 January 2022, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer via the 
Mayor’s Office regarding the conduct of Ward councillors. The resident’s email 
was acknowledged and the resident was asked to fill out an ethics complaint 
form in order to provide more details to allow the Monitoring Officer to consider 
the complaint. 
 
No response was received and this matter is closed. 
 

3.7 Case G 
On 16 February 2022, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer from 
a councillor about another councillor acting unlawfully.  
 
The Monitoring Officer responded to the councillor on 1 March 2022 asking for 
some clarification and confirmation on the information provided.  
 
After considering the complaint, the Monitoring Officer decided that the 
investigation of this complaint was not in the public interest and that the 
complaint wasn’t serious enough to warrant an investigation. Therefore, this 
complaint was closed. 
 

3.8 Case H 
On 4th of March, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer from a 
resident regarding a councillor’s conduct. The resident alleged that the 
councillor’s remarks at a planning appeal were disgraceful. 

 
The Monitoring Officer’s office acknowledged the complaint and asked for a 
completed Ethics form. 
 
No response was received and this matter is closed. 
 

3.9 Case I 
On 15th June, a complaint was received by the Monitoring Officer from a 
resident regarding a councillor’s conduct. The resident alleged that the 
councillor’s communication standard was not professional. 

 
The Monitoring Officer’s office has acknowledged the complaint and asked for a 
completed Ethics form. 

 
4. Financial Implications 

 
There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

 
5. Legal Implications 

 Page 62



The promotion of the Code of Conduct is consistent with the Council’s duty 
under Section 27 Localism Act 2011 to promote the highest standards of 
conduct by its members. 

 
6. Crime and Disorder 

 
There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 

 
7. Environmental Implications 

 
There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report. 

 
8. Conclusion 

 
Members are asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
For further information about this report please contact: 
 
Jeremy Chambers,  
Director of Law, Governance & Elections 
Monitoring Officer 
 
jeremy.chambers@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 63

mailto:jeremy.chambers@lewisham.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Declaration of interests
	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 14/03/2022 Standards Committee
	Minutes


	3 Appointments to Sub-Committees of the Standards Committee
	4 Annual Complaints Report
	Appendix 14.1 - Adult Social Care complaints annual report 21_22
	Appendix 14.2 - Annual Report  2021-2022 Complaints Compliments and Enquiries Children and Young People
	Appendix 14.3 - Independent Adjudicator Annual Report 21_22
	Appendix 14.4 - Freedom of Information, Subject Access Requests and Disclosure Requests

	5 Update on Cases of Members' Complaints

